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Commission Business

Minutes from June 19 meeting were approved unanimously pending inclusion of discussion regarding securing one or more national health policy experts to assist the Commission in answering the key questions underlying the consolidated proposal.
Modeling Terminology – Technical Advisor Tracy Johnson
See presentation from technical advisor Tracy Johnson. She reminded attendees about the reports developed by Lewin and explained how those relate to today’s presentation – e.g., modeling results showing transitions in coverage start from Lewin’s assessment of the characteristics of the uninsured in Colorado. Similarly, changes in spending refer to Lewin’s findings in its baseline report on spending.

· Specification: putting specifics on the proposal/translate into modeling language (e.g., coverage strategies, premiums and subsidies, etc.)

· Refinements: adjusting those specifications after seeing modeling results. Goal of refinement is to improve performance of the proposal (e.g., cover more people, lower costs) or test effects of different options.

· Sensitivity analysis: modifying assumptions internal to the model (e.g., insurance take-up rates, utilization, federal flexibility, crowd-out effects, etc.).Specifications and refinements are outside the model.

Modeling Progress Presentation – John Sheils, The Lewin Group
Analogy: Like painting a house. First step is to scrape and caulk, and it looks bad until you get some paint on the walls. We’re now at the point where we have some paint on the walls, although we’re not entirely finished.

Two plans are fully financed (i.e., have identified cost savings and revenue mechanisms to cover all program costs); one is very close; the fourth is still thinking through financing.

· Commissioner Lisa Esgar noted the importance of separating discussion of costing out and financing the proposals.

Work still in progress/yet to be done:

· Work with HCPF to reconcile to Medicaid, CHP+ and uninsured figures. May require some changes to the model.
· Reconcile to actuarial analysis for private market. 
This work will be completed by the end of the month.
He noted that some of the proposals assume waivers from the federal government (e.g., ERISA, Medicaid, Medicare waivers) and that those would require acts of Congress. Lewin has chosen to model the proposals both ways – with and without the waivers. Lewin will note concerns about the potential likelihood of receiving such waivers. 

He thanked the proposers for their hard work and fast turnaround.

Comparative Analysis of Proposals – Evelyn Murphy, The Lewin Group
(see attached presentation)

Evelyn Murphy reiterated John Sheils’ thanks to the proposers for their work and responsiveness.

Comments/questions:

· Request that the single payer plan be more accurately reflected in the comparison table.

· Evelyn strongly suggested that readers not rely on this summary table for information on financing; it does not fully reflect the financing mechanisms incorporated in the proposals.

· Commissioners noted that some of the elements in the table may not lend themselves to check-marks. In particular, they noted concern/confusion about the information displayed about payment rates, and expressed concern that the check marks in those boxes could be misleading.

· John Sheils explained that this summary is designed simply to help illustrate differences among the plans. He suggested that Lewin create a new line for “payment rates” and then provide detail for each proposal within it.

· Commissioners questioned how safety-net care is represented in these data tables. Lewin explained that that information will be reflected in the specific analyses of each proposal.

A Plan for Covering Coloradans
Presentation: Dr. Bruce Cooper, Committee for Colorado Health Care Solutions
Description of team
Diverse individuals with experience in health care policy and delivery. The team included
Kathy Anderson, former manager-Kaiser Permanente Colorado; Cody Belzley, manager-public policy, Denver Health; Bruce Cooper, medical director-Health District of Northern Larimer County; Patty Gabow, MD, CEO and Medical Director- Denver Health; Judith Glazner, health policy professor/health economist; Peter Smith, UCHSC; Carol Plock, executive director – Health District of Northern Larimer County.  The team represented themselves as individuals, not their organizations.
How proposal was developed
Generated a list of questions to be answered – prioritized/reviewed Commissioners’ guiding principles; reviewed/summarized literature/looked at other states’ efforts; spoke to national experts. Created tables assessing pros and cons of each approach. Discussed ideas, refined them.

Goals of proposal
Adopted Commission’s goals, but restated:

· Cover all Coloradans with coverage sufficient to meet essential needs

· Mandatory coverage—thus affordability was key

· Retain what works in  both public and private coverage, fix what doesn’t

· Didn’t want to disrupt economy by abolishing insurance industry
· Problem though, is insurance is complicated – proposal simplifies market

· Create single purchasing pool

· No one will have to pay more for insurance

· Premium assistance program

· On public side:

· Maximize federal matching funds

· Combine to make more efficient

· Shared responsibility – workers, employers, insurers, state, to finance

· Did not want to create proposal dependent upon federal waivers, esp. for ERISA

· Create infrastructure to align incentives for cost and quality

· Rapid deployment of HIT

· Integrated delivery systems

Issues that arose during modeling
· Specifying details – correcting misunderstandings, simplifying, coming up with details they didn’t have (e.g., premium assistance subsidy, Medicaid reimbursement rates, employer assessment, etc.)

· E.g., employer assessment – backed off from original aggressive approach after talking to ERISA experts and other states

· Tried to norm to other states when possible

· Changed mix of payers for premium subsidy to minimize cost to state

· Adopted CHP+-style approach to public coverage

· First round showed some modest savings but illustrated need for additional money

Additional refinements they would like
· Not enough time and opportunity to make refinements based on “what if” questions

· Have questions about Medicaid reimbursement – could it be increased to cost-based level that would abolish cost-shift

· What if excise tax on alcohol paid for social cost of drinking – how much $$ would it generate

· Cost and quality schemes w/o as much evidence, e.g., HIT – would like to do more analysis of those

· What if Medicaid required 340B drug pricing through health centers – how much money would that save

· Sensitivity analysis for subsidies

· Sensitivity analysis for critical variables

What differentiates proposal
· Careful not to move least affluent people into high-cost plans

· Don’t cut people off from benefits they may need later

· Generous benefit and subsidy program – think the tradeoffs are worth it

Questions:

· You want employers to pay their share – how get money out of them if they’re paying higher wages?  Will this reduce wages?
· May or may not. May even the playing field.

Lewin analysis of A Plan for Covering Coloradans – Randy Haught, The Lewin Group
Key aspects:

· Pretty substantial Medicaid and CHP+ expansion

· Big increase in eligibility for parents, covers some more kids, cover single childless adults up to poverty level

· Automatic enrollment for Medicaid through other public programs

· Employer “pay or play” mandate

Question: Pretty minimal penalty on employers who don’t offer coverage; how account for that?

Answer: Assumed most employers would pay assessment

Question: Have you seen crowd-out elsewhere?

Answer: Assume there are reasons why employers offer coverage and those firms will continue to do so.

Question: Where do you put partially self-funded?

Answer: If self-funded that has purchased reinsurance, considered self-funded.

· Individual mandate

· Subsidies for those up to 400% FPL

· Insurance market reform

· Combine individual, large group and small group markets into one purchasing pool

· Self-funded outside pool

Question: Did you look at potential gaming?

Answer: Assumed none
Transitions in coverage
· Lots move from uninsured to Medicaid
· Many move from employer/individual to Medicaid (will be cheaper because of expanded eligibility)

· Because of employer mandate, some move from uninsured/individual market to employer plan – slight increase in employer coverage
· Because of individual mandate, some move from uninsured 

· 46,000 uninsured remain

Question: What happens to approx. 200,000 illegal aliens? 

Answer: A lot of 46,000 uninsured will be illegal, but some work for employers who will offer coverage and will get that or can get through individual market (just won’t qualify for subsidies)

Response: 46,000 remaining uninsured seems too small.

Question: Does someone w/emergency coverage under Medicaid count as uninsured? Even applies to undocumented.

Answer: Not counted as covered.

Change in cost
· Expect about 3% increase in state health spending (total, all payers, public and private), or $985 million more than current $3b level

· Notes:

· Providers get windfall from payment for previously uncompensated care; proposal addresses that through provider tax, so it’s a wash for providers
Question: Is payment assumed to be sufficient to retain/attract providers?

Answer: Provider payment rates will remain same.

Response: But if we don’t have enough providers now and we’re putting more people in system, do you assume providers will come?

Response: Can be addressed through sensitivity analysis.

Question: Not changing Medicaid FFS reimbursement rates, which are very low; 

assuming that there will be doctors who will see them?

Answer: Yes.
Note: Did not model access.
· Mandatory case management, 340B drugs, PDL, Medicaid managed care all used to manage Medicaid costs

· Would have to increase payments to HMOs in order to attract them to Medicaid, so would not reduce program costs

Question: Explain previous

Answer: To attract plans back, would have to increase to at least 100% FFS

Question: Don’t attribute savings to shift from emergency to preventive care, or inpatient to outpatient?

Answer: Do show some savings from case management.

Question: Model assumes only minor cost savings from case management, but experience elsewhere has shown savings as high as 30% (Massachusetts).
Answer: Depends on the population – higher cost savings for diabetes case management. Lewin says the highest savings they’ve seen is 4%. Admits they used a lowball estimate (1%) but is reluctant to take it higher than 4%.

· More administrative costs for insurers

Question: Proposal notes admin savings

Answer: Est. about $240 m in savings from current covered lives, but adding many more, so overall, admin costs rise
Medicaid expansion: $492,000 – will cost approx. $1.2 billion (state picks up about $822 million of that)

Premium subsidies:  1.4 million people eligible – will cost about $1.5 billion ADD


Question: Approx. $2k/year to cover each new Medicaid member. Did you analyze which 

type of Medicaid member this would be?


Answer: Estimated kids v. adults – assume lower utilizers (e.g., not long-term care 

recipients)


Cost to state: New costs of approx. $2.3 billion (Medicaid/CHP+ expansion and premium subsidies), but will be offset by new revenues and offsets to existing programs, leaving net cost to state of $0.


Question: Do these costs shift to providers?


Answer: May not – may be passed on to consumers


Response:  In other states, providers have not completely eaten the cost


Question: Does estimate of tobacco tax revenues account for reduction in smokers as 

result of higher cost?


Answer: Yes, assumes approx. 8% decrease in demand due to 1% increase in price.


Question: Where do administrative costs for giant purchasing pool show up?


Answer: Think current admin costs for insurers would be reduced, costs would net out. 


Question:  Would be useful to have more detailed understanding of income tax increase.


Answer: Will do that for final report.

Cost to employers: Expect to see reduction in spending for firms that currently offer insurance because some employees will move to Medicaid, some admin savings; offset by employer assessment. Net change for currently insuring employers: Save $138 million.

Would see increase in costs of about $205 million for those that do not currently offer insurance.

Nets out to approx. $67 million additional costs for all private employers.

Differential for large versus small firms –

· For those that currently insure, biggest improvement for very small employers, also for those with 100+ employees

Question: Does this plan establish minimum employer contribution and max employee contribution?

Answer: Employer would have to contribute 85% of average individual premium.

Note: The more detail you put into the program, more likely it is to be overturned by ERISA.

Impact on households:

Some savings in premiums and out-of-pocket payments, offset by new taxes and wage effects (i.e., lower wages because employers will pass along mandate cost to employees). Net impact on households: approx. $585 million increase in household spending.

Any household below about $50k household income will save money; highest income will pay about $3500 more. Approx. $290/year/household on average.


Question: How define household?

Answer: Cross-section from MEPS.

Colorado Health Services Plan

Presentation: Dr. Rocky White
Description of team
Dr. Rocky White, internist, San Luis Valley – primary author; Colorado Nurses Association; physicians, nurses, business people, and engineers from around the state.
History
Dr. White comes from conservative background, worked with fellow conservative physicians in San Luis Valley, believed could work within system—but integrated practice went broke. 23% of the practice’s patient load was Medicaid; 28% is Medicare; lost 30 cents of every dollar on every Medicaid patient, broke even on Medicare. 24% population in SLV is uninsured. Used to be medical director of insurance company. Came to single payer reluctantly. 

Question: Is your proposal single-payer in sense that payment is collected thru tax 

system but still a fee-for-service system, esp. for hospitals?

Answer: Yes. Can still have group like Kaiser. Debate as to whether hospitals should be 

on global budget; this proposal does not do that, continues current DRG system. Don’t want to change practice of medicine, just the financing.

Question: So it’s like Medicare?

Answer: Yes.

Question: Profit is taken out of system?

Answer: Trying to take profit motive out of financing.  Want to ensure that all physicians 

and hospitals are paid equally for the same procedure – no variation in payments. Just 

like Medicare.

Response: But if everyone was on Medicare, we’d be bankrupt.

Answer: That’s why we’ve tried to prevent Medicare-type disaster. Medicare must 

compete with other budget items. Our system would take earmarked dollars and use 

them only for health care. Public utility model – board, accountable to citizens, oversees 

this public insurance company. Places system on a budget. Admin costs must be 

capped, system can’t operate at a deficit.

Question: Do you envision removing all profit – no for-profit hospitals, physicians?

Answer:  No – just eliminate insurance companies.

Question: Benefits may fluctuate depending on budget?

Answer: Yes. If save enough money may be able to expand benefits, or discover we 

can’t afford part of it. System provides public forum for people of Colorado to make that 

decision.
Question: Medicaid benefits package doesn’t include dental care, eyeglasses – what 

would happen to people who need that?

Answer: Dental, eye care need to be included. But used present Medicaid package.
Clarification: Medicaid dental coverage is very robust for kids up to age 21; only limited 

for adults.

Question: What safeguards are in place to ensure that high-needs populations get 

adequate services and there is no Oregon-style rationing?

Answer: Medicaid is pretty rich package, esp. for primary care. Have to protect special 

needs; commission will help do that.

Lewin analysis of Colorado Health Services Plan -Randy Haught, The Lewin Group
Coverage specifications
· Cover all Coloradans (everyone who has lived here at least 3 mos)

· Employers and insurers can offer supplemental/wraparound benefits

· Based on Medicaid benefit package

· Not based on Medicaid rates

· LTC included, both medical care and facility stay

Question: Assumes 25% increase in home/community-based care in first year – why?

Answer: To try to protect high-needs population, includes funding to do this

Question: Is that 25% increase based on current unmet need? Will it be capped in future?

Answer: Recognized inadequacy of current system. Hope that this increase will help address inadequacies.

Question: Does proposal shift money from nursing home budget to HCBS budget?

Answer: Not in current modeling, could be done in next stage

· Everyone expected to pay co-payments on sliding scale
· Provider payment rates a composite across all current payors (Medicare, Medicaid, private pay). Will be reduced to reflect reduced cost-shifting and admin savings.

Question: How compare to current Medicare costs?

Answer: For physicians, will be approx. 115% Medicare. 

Question: Currently, hospitals have different base rates, even for Medicaid/Medicare. That would go away – all receive same payment, no geographic adjustment?

Answer: Did not get into payments to individual hospitals. Overall average rate is same, but there will be winners and losers.

Question: Are you funding up-front on estimated future savings?

Answer: Partially.

Question: Is there a mechanism if a loser is a sole provider in a community – what do about that?

Answer: Did not model that level of detail.

· Centralized purchasing of prescription drugs.

· Admin costs cannot exceed 5%.
· Financing: 

· Plan assumes lots of federal waivers

· State and local government health spending must be recaptured

· Employers pay payroll tax

· Individuals and families pay remainder through income tax (could be modeled in other ways)

Question: Would ERISA employers pay same amount as everyone else?

Answer: Make assumption that ERISA plans and employees will be folded in – won’t allow large corporations to carve out. Will become a legal issue, but can’t be afraid of ERISA boogeyman.

Estimate of administrative costs 

Total:  $341 million (currently spending about $2.2 billion on admin expenses)

Transitions in coverage
Everyone goes from what they have now into this program.

No uninsured remaining.

Change in spending
$1.6 billion overall savings.  Additional costs from increased utilization are offset by admin savings and bulk purchasing of pharmaceuticals and DME.

Question: Is LTC a benefit for all?

Answer:  Everyone covered for medical care; won’t pay room and board for all. Will set 

eligibility standard.

Question: We’re going to dramatically increase level of coverage and cover everyone but 

still save money?


Answer:  Have tried to be conservative about admin savings but have always seen 

savings. Analogy: Can save money if everyone drives same model car. 

Question: Re: admin costs – 13% total hospital costs are admin – ask hospitals, is that 

reasonable and how will it change?

Answer:  Itemized for purpose of excluding them. Lewin takes those costs to figure out 

what percentage will be saved. Detail of modeling is not shown in these documents, will 

be part of final report.

Question: How do these admin costs correlate to the 5% admin cost limit in the proposal.

Answer: These are less than maximum permitted in the proposal.

Benefit costs:


Acute care:  

$22 b

LTC: 


$2.4 b
Admin: 
 
$341 m

TOTAL:  
$25 b

Sources of funds:

State & local government savings

$3.8 b

Federal government transfers

$8.7 b

Taxes





$12 b

State income tax gain



$ 92 m



TOTAL




$25 b

Suggestion: Would be prudent to look at cost impacts of anticipated growth in over-65 
population—will grow  considerably and change these conclusions.
Question:  2,300 individuals in nursing homes still who shouldn’t be there but no money 

for nursing home to community transition. Does this model include such dollars? Does it calculate in reduction in number of nursing home admissions?

Answer:  Assume no change in utilization of nursing home services. 

Question: Did you model influx of new residents who are attracted by new plan?

Answer: No.

Question: How was 4% payroll tax arrived at; how compare to current?

Answer: Specified in proposal; current payroll tax approx. 8-9%.

Question: Did you make any assumptions about increasing unemployment from 

eliminating insurers, brokers, laid-off admin workers at hospitals, etc.?

Answer: Good point; expected to be temporary condition.

Question: Explain cost-shift savings.

Answer: Care currently provided “free”. 

Question: Why is this number different from previous?

Answer: There’s more people covered.

Question: What’s individual income tax?

Answer: Pretty substantial – about 36% increase on federal tax.

Change in federal government spending
Total savings $839 million

Change in private employer spending
Currently spend approx. $7 b; currently insuring firms would spend about 50% as much as currently do. Increase of $754 m for non-insuring employers.

Approx. $2b savings total

Could be lower wages and job loss. 

The more you pay for this system through employer-based tax, the less money gets sent to DC and the more stays in Colorado.


Note: Small business that currently insure will get hammered by this; would be helpful to 

see.


Question: Have other states asked you to look at differential tax treatment of small 

firms?


Answer: Yes, some have graduated payroll tax depending on size of firm. However, size 
of firm does not necessarily replicate viability of firm.


Question: What happens to premiums that have been paid to insurers for LTC and that 
care now won’t be used?


Answer: Profit to firms, mostly.

Change in employer health spending
Those that don’t currently offer insurance would pay approx. $1400 per worker, regardless of firm size.

Those currently insuring would save money, especially for larger employers who also save on retiree costs.

Change in household spending
Net change:  $330 million savings.  Save on premiums and lower out-of-pocket costs, though offset by income tax increases.

Change by income:  Families below about $70k annual income save, as much as about 

$2800; those at higher incomes would pay more.

Change by age: Middle-age people spend more, 65+ save a lot.

Public Comment
Technical advisor Tracy Johnson read questions on cards from audience; noted that those concerns which had been addressed in previous comment session would simply be noted, but not re-answered.

Is goal on discussion on reform to create healthier/more productive Colorado, or simply cover all Coloradans?

What is covered for in-home services for elderly?

Answer:  Medicaid package.

Why not include dental and chiropractic?

Answer:  Function of Medicaid benefit package.  Chiropractic is limited.
Is system flexible after it starts, if you see need to change or add services?

Answer: Start w/Medicaid package, but over time administrative entity can make changes.

Include coverage for clinical trials?

Answer: Assume no change in pharmacy benefit.

Will there be a control on how much room and board costs for home-based LTC?

Answer: For people who currently meet Medicaid standards, hoteling services are covered; for new people who come in, room and board is not covered.

Can you change from Kaiser to single-payer plan in middle of year?

Answer:  Modeled it as single-payer, don’t include managed care organizations. (NOTE: This contradicts what Dr. White said, though there may be some confusion among his team as to setup.)

If you build it, will they come?

Answer:  Remember, we have asked Lewin to model coverage and costs. We’ll ask them to comment qualitatively on access, etc.; commission can then expand on those. Also, Commission is writing its own proposal and there are numerous inputs to that.

Calls for 5 districts appointed by governor – doesn’t this give governor too much power?
Currently, people are working, healthy and have been paying into insurance system. What happens to that money?

Answer: Insurance is a pooling concept – those who use services benefit from the pool. At any time there will be people who haven’t benefited from the system.

Portability becomes important – what if somebody leaves the state?

Answer: Coverage is based on residency.

Better Health Care for Colorado
Presentation: Jake Williams, SEIU
 (see slide presentation)
10th wealthiest state in country, yet have more uninsured than the poorest state (WV)

Approach
· Leverage federal dollars
· Capitalize on cost savings
· Address largest populations of uninsured
Key components
· Medicaid reform

· Reintroduce managed care

· Pay for performance

· Medical home

· Preventive care

· Address employed but uninsured

· Expand coverage through insurance exchange

· In conjunction with Medicaid expansion

· Subsidy for insurance purchase

· LTC

· Serve as many disabled people as possible

· More options for home and community-based care

Modeling issues
· Tight timeline, haven’t fully modeled LTC reforms

· Projected cost of running insurance exchange is higher than experience in other states

· Range of other reforms are not easily modeled but believe they could result in significant cost savings

· Modeling does not reflect federal waivers

· Believe will cover more uninsured than Lewin results show
Question: Contradictory studies about cost savings from home/community-based care. Also, lots of variety in pay-for-performance results. 

Answer:  To first point, will ask Lewin to answer; also depends on type of services being provided. Re: pay-for-performance – think we can learn from experiences elsewhere and also bring all stakeholders to table.

Question: How are you addressing underinsured? Minimal benefits package raises that issue.

Answer: Often a tension between choice and adequate benefits. Exchange would be required to approve plans offered through it. There is a variety of benefits. People are getting first-dollar coverage, better than being forced into uncompensated care setting.

Question:  Guaranteed-issue plan plus range of other plans. How prevent adverse selection in guaranteed issue plan?

Answer:  It’s all guaranteed issue.

Question: Role of safety net?

Answer: Continue to be important. Hopefully w/introduction of right kind of managed care can actually improve safety net system.

Question: What kind of safeguards do you have for populations for whom evidence-based medicine doesn’t work (i.e., people with disabilities)?
Answer:  Don’t address. Could be addressed later down the road.

Question:  Why start with Medicaid/CHP+ expansion before moving into other areas?

Answer: Practical, politically viable approach.

Question:  If I’m 27% FPL, have premium subsidy of 96%; get sick, go to ER, hospital needs to see me. What source of funding pays for the ED care that hospitals will still provide?

Answer:  Don’t divert all DSH funds, some will still be available. Believe we’ll need fewer indigent care dollars. Not perfect, but progress.

Question: 75% CICP money in Colorado comes from federal sources. How will that money continue to flow if we’ve eliminated uncompensated care?

Answer: Can get waiver to use DSH money for expanding coverage; can be worked out.

Question: Rating based on health status eliminated in the exchange but not elsewhere.  How avoid adverse selection?

Answer:  There’s a 6-month waiting period – must be uninsured for 6 months prior to entering the exchange. Small biz must not offer coverage for 1 year before entering exchange.

Lewin analysis of Better Health Care for Colorado- Randy Haught, The Lewin Group
Specifications
· Expand Medicaid and CHP+ to 300% FPL for kids
· Expand Medicaid coverage for parents to 250% FPL, childless adults to 225% FPL

· Limited benefit package

· No more than $35,000 annual total

· Copayments for hospital and physician care

· $1,000 annual max for emergency services

· LTC benefits (not yet modeled)

· Monthly premium for benchmark plan cannot exceed $150-250.

· Premium discounts for wellness, healthy behavior.

Question: How do you shift the cost? Who bears the cost of the discount?

Answer: Can’t model at that level of detail; implicitly, it’s averaged.

· Significant subsidies (see presentation for detail)

· People who qualify for Cover Colorado could use subsidy for that

Question:  Anticipate increased number of people in Cover Colorado?

Answer:  Yes.

Question:  Where does money come from if people hit the cap?

Answer:  Haven’t been able to model yet.

· Continue to use Medicaid and CHP+ rates for reimbursement

· Medicare rates as upper limit for private plans in exchange.

Question:  Have you built in cost for rate-setting mechanism?

Answer:  Included in state admin costs.

Question:  Does proposals assume all Medicaid recipients in managed care?

Answer:  Haven’t modeled yet.

Transitions in coverage
300,000 people go into exchange. Pretty strict anti-crowd-out, so little movement of people who currently have private coverage.

Substantial increase in Medicaid/CHP+.

Voluntary program, so can’t assume that everyone will come in, so leave more people uninsured than authors may have wished.

Change in state health spending

Total:  $595 million increase – higher utilization, new payments for previously uncompensated care, substantial increase in admin costs.

Question:  As you get people into medical homes, don’t you realize savings? Is that 


captured here?


Answer:  Not captured in Lewin analysis. State was skeptical of how much could be 


saved under this and other programs.

Question:  Any extra dollars to fund additional services that go with medical home?


Answer:  Nothing was proposed.


Question:  When you’re in exchange, it’s age-rated?


Answer:  Yes.


Concern whether cost-effective to collect small amount of premium (ref. experience 


w/ past CHP+ expansion).


Question:  If I’m in exchange but then gain access to employer-sponsored insurance, do 


I get kicked off?


Answer:  You lose your subsidy. Think it’s portable so you wouldn’t be rated up.

Question: Why set up exchange? Why not just have state set up program?


Answer:  Exchange would be governed by board of stakeholders, not necessarily case 


at state. Also, though Lewin’s numbers didn’t bear it out, proposers anticipated admin 


cost savings.


Question:  You’re not looking at individual decision-making at different price levels and 


over time?


Answer:  Correct.

Enrollment and costs
(see presentation)

Skeptical of ability to get federal 1115 waiver; included numbers for that, however
Total initial expansion:  Reduce uninsured by 325,000, leave 467,000 uninsured

Question: Does it make difference if cost-sharing is enforceable?


Answer:  Haven’t looked at that.


Question:  What do you assume re: increased enrollment costs?


Answer:  Reflected in increase in state admin costs.


Question:  Couldn’t you give kids full CHP+ benefit for not much more money?


Answer:  Kids do get CHP+ benefit package, it’s different than adult package. Kids don’t 

lose CHP+ eligibility if they have it, but someone who’s not income-qualified can’t buy it.

Change in state and local government costs
$53 million more if 1115 waiver approved; $283 million more if not approve

Change in federal costs
$472 million more if waiver approve; $242 more if not approved

Change in employer costs
Approx. $107 million savings

Change in household spending
Net effect: approx. $70 million increase.

Lowest-income households see reduction; $50k households and above will pay more

Some savings for youngest; older households pay more
Question:  If have large population of people who’ve gone bare for 6 months, among them will be many with chronic diseases as well as healthy people. Have you modeled adverse selection, since there is no mandate? Are you recruiting more sick people who will have higher costs?
Answer:  Expect to see more sick people; need to model financial impacts.
Question:  Not using managed care in Medicaid; are using them in exchange. If in Medicaid, not in disease management; if in exchange, presumably they are. Did that factor into modeling?

Answer:  Did not. 

Question: Can blow through $35k annual benefit in no time; how did you determine reduction in cost-shift?

Answer:  Care that would actually be paid for. E.g., $100k bill -- $35,000 of that will be paid.  $65k remains uncompensated.

Question:  Do you have assumption or data to indicate whether providers who currently get uncompensated care funds would love money under this program?

Answer:  Modeling shows that reimbursement will be better than uncompensated care reimbursement.

Question:  What is difference between Medicaid waiver and 1115 waiver?

Answer:  1115 waiver is a type of Medicaid waiver. All waivers must be cost-neutral to federal government over 5 years. Waiver is waiver of federal regulations, typically very long (e.g., 2 years) process. Examples: choice, coverage area, etc. State plan amendment is allowed under current regulations. Every state has service delivery plan, changes can be implemented and then approved retroactively by federal government. 

Question:  Not convinced that hospitals will be better off with capped reimbursement.
Question:  Slide 19 shows that all employers save money. So everyone is abandoning employer-based coverage, lots of crowd-out, but 6-month waiting period is supposed to minimize that.

Answer:  Reduction in cost-shifting also contributes to savings.

Question:  Does model account for employers scaling down benefit package?

Answer:  Did not model it; possibility that will happen.

Comment:  Important to look at reduction in cost-shift. But those reductions don’t go to individuals. Accountability must be in place so that translates into premium decreases.

Public comment
Question:
How do each of the 4 plans deal with high admin/overhead costs? How do they compare in this regard?

Answer:  Will be addressed in summary comments.

Questions-

Comment:  What about people not reaching activities of daily living (ADL)—functional assessment standards of Medicaid, but who have significant medical costs?  Need income disregard.
Comment:  One proposal has medical needy program being added—A Plan for Covering Colorado. Given the extension—Lewin could potentially model this

Solutions for a Healthy Colorado
Presentation:  Barry Teters, Colorado State Associate of Health Underwriters
Description of team
Barry Teters, Colorado State Associate of Health Underwriters –primary author.
How proposal was developed

The group developed guiding principles and requirements for reform, noting that the best solutions are driven by private market competition.  CSAHU believes that coverage should be tied to responsibility to obtain insurance.  With inflation at 10-20%/year—must address costs.  Reform must promote ongoing & long-term experimentation and provide consumers access to meaningful information. The true underlying problem is the cost of medical care.  
Goals of proposal

The number one goal of this proposal is to address the uninsured.

Issues that arose during modeling

Model shows addresses 90% of uninsured.  This proposal address 99% of covered Coloradans.  Sees inconsistencies between proposals.  Would like to address all options regarding potential waivers.  

What differentiates proposal

His organization benefits professionals.  It interacts with employers and individuals who purchase coverage and understands needs, willingness to pay and willingness for risk. They understand a segment of the marketplace.
Questions.

Question:  talk about how addressing underinsured--those who exceed coverage limits, or cannot afford co-pays and end up with significant medical debt.
Answer:  limited benefit plans not embraced by broker population.  Core benefit plan is designed to address uninsured and those eligible for subsidy.  Some coverage better than none.  Ours is more generous than ones on current market-$50K---it is a start.  Doesn’t see reinsurance fitting in without fed financing.  

Question:  What parts of your proposal address inflationary trend?
Answer: Uniform reimbursements—controls cost shift piece of the private market.  Electronic medical records need to be addressed.  This piece will eliminate much inefficiencies and duplication in system.  We do not have all the answers—should be important element of conversation.

Comment:  Proposals have not addressed this issue—even nationally.

Comment:  There is a risk of creating dual systems—as providers drop off. 

Answer:  Let’s fix existing social programs before creating new ones.  Met with providers to discuss reimbursement---Private, Medicare,  and Medicaid.  Noted that 22% of uninsured are eligible for Medicaid but not enrolled.  Thinks should increase Medicaid reimbursements to Medicare level as a starting point.  Start bringing it up before expand that program.

Question: US is average with other OECD countries with respect to spending.  Confused by Mr. Teters answer regarding reinsurance.  Why would a state agency do a better job?

Answer:  Mr. Teters responde that the US has more illegal immigrants and a transient, illegal population that other countries do not have.  The idea is that everyone is covered under one tent.  He noted that the reinsurance concept has not been modeled in our proposal.

Question:  Are affordability issues addressed in the modeling? Could you use subsidy to buy something else.  
Answer:   Yes, could use voucher to buy individual coverage or at place of work.  The core benefit is only available to those eligible for subsidy

Comment:  So when people are not eligible for subsidy, they go into the private market, subject to community rating.
Lewin analysis of Solutions for a Healthy Colorado-Randy Haught, The Lewin Group
Key Aspects:

· Out of pocket max-$3,000
· Premium subsidy up to 250% FPL.  There is not an opt out provision here (as in MA plan)  everyone must purchase coverage or face a fine.

· Core benefit package is subject to modified community rating.  Can take subsidy and apply to elsewhere—but it is capped.

· Individual mandate—assume everyone purchases coverage versus paying high penalty.  Not a big crowd out factor.  

· Big increase in Medicaid enrollment—assume that people eligible for Medicaid will enroll in it rather than purchasing private coverage.  

· Could entice some employers to offer coverage.

Comment:  in CO group coverage is twice as expensive as individual coverage is.  You’ve said that group coverage is cheaper---Allan Jensen noted that this has not been his experience.  
Comment:  small group market subject to many mandates not applicable in individual market.  Not comparing apples to apples.  In group policy—no preexisting conditions.  

Question:  Looking for real numbers that people pay.  Mr. Jensen asked, how Lewin compared individual to group—what assumptions have you made?
Answer:   Mr. Sheils answered that they looked at data from Commissioner of Insurance .  He noted that the data supports Mr. Jensen’s point.  However, he clarified that on an apples to apples comparison---would see that costs are higher in group.  He noted that 70% of all health spending is concentrated among 10% of the population—those who are sick.  If you only insure healthy people—will lower premiums.  
Question:  What sanction did you model?

Answer:   Denial of vehicle registration, etc.  

Question:  If this is the only guaranteed issue plan---may have issue of adverse selection.  Understand that there are penalties put in to this---may be hard to collect.  Do we need some sensitivity analysis as to whether this would work—seems your model assumes it would work.  

Answer:   there was auto-enrollment in MK.  We modeled that everyone (except those who are illegal or are) would obey law and purchase premiums.  

Comment:  Mr. Teters noted that his group takes issue with Lewin’s admin costs figures.
Question:  Question about connector and portability---nothing in addition to what we’ve done today?  

Answer:   Mr. Teters noted that is correct–can get federal matching dollars without a waiver.  

Question:  were there any admin costs modeled for the admin of the nutrition sales tax?  
Answer:   No

Question:  Has this type of tax been done as a revenue generator?
Comment:  10 states have soda taxes.  Many other have junk food taxes, but the market is flat in this area.

Question:  What would be the admin cost if people didn’t pay?   How does penalty apply to undocumented if we take people’s identity?
Comment:  Have the uninsured paying for the insured.

Answer:   Mr. Teters noted that they used this as one idea when we didn’t know what revenue would be needed.

Question:  What is in the nutrition tax.? 
Answer:   Carbonated soft drinks bought in Colorado, plus salty food.  5% tax.  Tobacco tax was tripled

Question:  This proposal combines a Medicaid expansion and a Medicaid provider rates.  Aren’t there are savings over time if people get a medical home.  

Answer:   Current numbers do not include Medicaid rate changes (bringing up to Medicare levels).  Final numbers will include this. When model a medical home, look for strong incentives to use the medical home.  That shows savings.  Not clear without incentives behavior changes. 

Question:  Do you assume providers are same irrespective of payment

Answer:   Access not modeled

Question:  Don’t understand private payment offset – big reduction to hospitals private 130% of Medicare, drives the billion$. Currently hospitals get 130% costs for private pay.  If you reduce hospital rates this way, all payers are below cost.  What would happen if you didn’t decrease hospital costs?  Does that address the billion dollar cost?  
Answer:   Yes, hospital costs drive this phenomenon.  

Comment:  Caution with cost-shifting assumptions advocated.  Can’t be sure that provider behavior would change. 

Comment:  misleading to present these until see other financing-

Answer:  The plan is not fully financed.  This isn’t a complete picture of what would happen under this plan.  

Question:-why isn’t the model as thorough on all proposals?

Answer:  Tracy Johnson noted that we have had two months to do two iterations of four proposals.  She clarified that there are things you want to know and things you can model, noting that there may be limit to what we can model.  We can identify areas where modeling can’t put numbers on certain things.  Need to discuss other things we can do.

Comment:  Lewin has done an unbelievably good job in such a tight timeframe.  They’ve done what we’ve asked them to do in the time given

Questions from public-

Question:  Are transportation issues addressed?  
Answer:  They show up in baseline, but are not modeled for newly enrolled.

Refinements decisions
Tracy Johnson presented the rationale for giving proposers and Lewin time for one additional round of modeling.  She noted that it is budget neutral and offers stronger end product.  Commissioners agreed that this is a good idea.

It was asked if Commissioners can give comments to staff for optional issues to be included.  Dr. Johnson noted that the Operations committee discussed the possibility of Commissioners doing additional refinements to four proposals, but agreed that the Commission should explore other options through the development of the 5th proposal.  Additional refinements to the four proposals would involve additional costs and contractual changes for both Lewin and the technical staff. 
Ms. Gorman asked if the Commission had received a legal opinion on whether it can do a 5th proposal.  Mr. Lindsay replied that yes, it has been determined that it has the authority to do so.
Sensitivity Analysis

Tracy Johnson explained that sensitivity analysis is “going inside the model.”  She suggested that the Commission focus on things that have a big impact.  For example, there may be places that the Commission wishes to use alternate date versus the regional data contained in some areas the report.

Does it make sense to give them categories of things we’d like them to look at to start the discussion?

Members discussed changes in population type, migration effects and impacts on economic and business development.  Dr. Johnson noted that we have seen many assumptions of federal flexibility in proposals.  We need to look at if flexibility granted and if not granted at all.

John Sheils clarified that not all federal waivers have equal impacts.  For instance, if don’t get a federal Medicare block grant, this would not represent a fatal flaw to a single payer plan.  However, this plan could not be done without a Medicaid block grant.
In sum, the Commission agreed to focus on areas where makes biggest difference, rely on national and regional rather than local numbers, examine areas with small research base, include financing, include assumptions regarding take up rates, summary benefit charts, wage effect concepts/economic transference, cost shifting related to underinsurance.
Members asked about data that data that doesn’t include certain population, such as MEPs data, which doesn’t include the disabled.

Commissioners were asked to forward any other specific sensitivity issues to Dr. Johnson, with the understanding that some issues may not be able to be modeled.  She will work with Lewin.

Members discussed that it matters who gets to keep the money and asked if it is accounted for in the modeling.  They also noted that there is an assumption that employers will pass savings on to employees.  What happens if they do not?  
Mark Simon noted that he didn’t see an increase in community/home-based care or decrease in nursing home care.  He noted that when offered---people are more than 6 times more likely to use community based/home based care.  Community care costs 1/3 to1/5 less.  Dr. Johnson asked him to share the research and citations with staff and with Lewin.  

Dr. Johnson noted that some proposals make refinements without covering additional people.  The Commission could ask for cost per newly insured person so could have direct comparison.

Public comment
Irene Aguilar noted that most people who go broke do so from medical expenses from unforeseen events and is not unique to people with disabilities.  

Request to look and mental health visits, they are too low.

Randall Loeb state that he works with people ranging from youth to elderly who die without insurance.  The Commission needs to think about conditions of poverty. Three months unemployment time period is ludicrous.  
Dr. Johnson reviewed other questions submitted in writing by members of the public. Discussed looking at episodic periods of unemployment.  It was also asked if there are going to be rebuttal statements from stakeholder groups—to clarify what we say what happens and what their experience is?  

Elinor Christiansen asserted that there should there be any eligibility requirements.  They put three months in the Colorado Health Services Plan to address to those who live here and need care.  These are points of refinement that can be discussed.

Steve Hurd asserted that the Commission needs to look at the health care delivery system.  He expressed concern about our siloed system.  The fact is that people have to shop around to get needs met and there is a lack of coordination among providers.  We need to look at ways to make system more efficient.

Wrap Up and Next meeting
Mr. Lindsay thanked the public and task force members for attending.  He thanked Dr. Johnson and the Lewin for amazing work and long hours.  He thanked the proposers for attending and for their hard work.

The next meeting of the Commission is scheduled for July 18 from 8:00am-5:00pm at the Colorado Hospital Association, 7335 E. Orchard Blvd., #100, Greenwood Village, CO  80111.
The meeting was adjourned at 5:25pm.
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